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ltem 1. Financial Statement

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

RICK'S CABARET INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalel

Accounts receivabl
Trade, ne
Other, ne

Marketable securitie

Inventories

Prepaid expenses and other current a

Assets of discontinued operations
Total current asse

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Buildings, land and leasehold improveme
Furniture and equipment

Accumulated depreciatic

Total property and equipment, r

OTHER ASSETS
Goodwill and indefinite lived intangible
Definite lived intangibles, ne
Other

Total other asse
Total assets

See accompanying notes to consolidated finan@ssients.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

ASSETS

JUNE 30, SEPTEMBER 3(
2010 2009
(UNAUDITED)
$ 18,418,88 12,850,25
899,42 776,72
303,33 136,76
766,69 -
1,341,13. 1,231,35:
2,623,87: 846,43(
174,56: 210,03
24,527,091 16,051,54
53,465,66 46,577,10
17,368,22 12,289,63
70,833,88 58,866,73
(12,965,66) (10,566,65)
57,868,22 48,300,07
80,983,68 78,330,91
1,263,54- 1,161,43;
1,358,20! 1,232,331
83,605,43 80,724,67
$ 166,00157 $  145076,29
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RICK'S CABARET INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounts payabl- trade
Accrued liabilities
Patron tax liability
Current portion of derivative liabilities, at faialue
Current portion of lon-term debt
Liabilities of discontinued operatiol
Total current liabilities

Deferred tax liability

Other lon¢-term liabilities

Long-term debt, less current portir

Derivative liabilities at fair value, long-term pimn

Total liabilities
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
TEMPORARY EQUITY- Common stock, subject to put rights (228,000 and @10 shares

PERMANENT STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Preferred stock, $.10 par, 1,000,000 shares aa#thrnone issued and outstand
Common stock, $.01 par, 20,000,000 shares autthr$z808,821 and 8,879,566 shares iss
Additional paic-in capital
Accumulated other comprehensive |
Retained earnings
Total Rick' s permanent stockhold’ equity
Noncontrolling interest
Total permanent stockhold’ equity

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity

See accompanying notes to consolidated finanassients.

JUNE 30, SEPTEMBER 3(

2010 2009
(UNAUDITED)
$ 744,70. $ 787,98:
2,978,99; 2,413,98
3,241,63! 1,162,961
1,231,93 885,60(
6,066,23; 5,855,72
43,11¢ 51,79¢
14,306,61 11,158,05
21,551,79 18,581,34
700,02 641,80
37,151,39 31,956,85
1,553,34i 2,455,99
75,263,18 64,794,04
5,011,001 6,871,001
98,08¢ 88,79¢
62,499,58 54,530,31
(242,26() -
20,056,81 15,472,74
82,412,22 70,091,86
3,315,16! 3,319,38
85,727,39 73,411,25
$ 166,00157 $  145,076,29
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RICK'S CABARET INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

FOR THE THREE MONTHS FOR THE NINE MONTHS

ENDED JUNE 30 ENDED JUNE 30
2010 2009 2010 2009
(UNAUDITED) (UNAUDITED)
Revenues
Sales of alcoholic beverag $ 8,067,620 $ 8,083,033 $ 25146,01 $ 21,682,558
Sales of food and merchand 1,701,00: 1,655,34i 5,073,34. 4,641,34.
Service revenue 9,003,009 10,175,44 28,520,65 27,110,70
Internet revenue 143,64. 151,98¢ 432,80¢ 493,38
Media revenue 203,23t 238,06 770,71 707,03(
Other 808,21¢ 722,54! 2,427,68. 1,930,18.
Total revenue 19,926,81 21,026,43 62,371,22 56,565,22
Operating expense
Cost of goods sol 2,457,14 2,290,45! 7,553,161 6,732,03
Salaries and wage 4,488,55: 4,093,31 13,210,28 12,309,77
Stock compensatic 44,031 20,04 132,11: 60,13:
Other general and administrati\
Taxes and permit 2,981,47! 2,443,99 9,151,411 7,158,71
Charge card fee 368,25: 421,71 1,084,12. 1,208,11!
Rent 971,82: 922,87¢ 3,022,93. 2,792,06.
Legal and profession 866,50« 565,80: 2,275,57 1,880,36:
Advertising and marketin 1,264,92. 3,378,41. 5,710,02 6,246,95.
Insurance 276,47 331,71¢ 797,60: 838,08:
Utilities 396,77¢ 379,03: 1,213,52! 1,182,34
Impairment of nightclub asse - - - 823,09(
Depreciation and amortizatic 991,54: 853,14( 2,715,95! 2,556,10
Other 1,540,501 1,479,72 4,716,91. 4,192,05:
Total operating expenses 16,648,01 17,180,23 51,583,62 47,979,81
Operating incomi 3,278,80. 3,846,19 10,787,59 8,585,40:
Other income (expense
Interest incomu 5,12z 1,11: 14,37¢ 8,501
Interest expens (996,20 (811,68¢) (3,042,74) (2,453,98)
Interest expens- loan origination cost (286,719 - (348,25) -
Other - - (2,675 (8,565
Gain (loss) on change in fair value of derivatinstiument: (407,049 (121,909 22,43: (121,909
Income from continuing operations before incomess 1,593,94i 2,913,72 7,430,72! 6,009,45:
Income taxe: 661,64 1,024,75! 2,594,26' 2,112,10
Income from continuing operatiol 932,30° 1,888,96: 4,836,45! 3,897,34!
Loss from discontinued operations, net of incomxes (15,826 (30,969 (45,619 (262,049
Net income 916,48: 1,857,99 4,790,84. 3,635,29
Less: net income attributable to noncontrollingerasts (59,780 (73,500 (206,78() (220,500
Net income attributable to Ri’s Cabaret International, In $ 856,70: $ 1,784,499 $ 4,584,060 $ 3,414,79
Basic earnings (loss) per share attributable t&’s shareholder:
Income from continuing operatiol $ 0.0¢ $ 02C $ 04¢ $ 0.4C
Loss from discontinued operatio $ (0.00) % (0.00) $ (0.00) % (0.09)
Net income $ 0.0¢ $ 01¢ $ 04¢ $ 0.37
Diluted earnings (loss) per share attributableittk’s shareholder:
Income from continuing operatiol $ 0.0¢ $ 0.1¢ $ 04t $ 0.3¢
Loss from discontinued operatio $ (0.00) % (0.00) % (0.00) % (0.09)
Net income $ 0.0¢ $ 01¢ $ 0.4¢ $ 0.3¢
Weighted average number of common shares outsigr
Basic 9,905,13. 9,185,75! 9,545,541 9,288,53!
Diluted 9,957,83 9,409,56: 9,875,52 9,499,01!

Comprehensive income for the three months ended 30n 2010 and 2009 was $501,403 and $1,784,498 fanthe nine months w
$4,341,804 and $3,401,449, respectively. Thisuthes the changes in available-for-sale securitidsnat income.



See accompanying notes to consolidated finan@sients.
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RICK'S CABARET INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income
Loss from discontinued operations, net of inconxesa
Income from continuing operatiol
Adjustments to reconcile net income to cash praViole operating activities
Depreciation and amortizatic
Write-off of prepaid loan origination cos
Impairment of nightclub asse
Deferred taxe
Amortization of note discout
Beneficial conversiol
Noncontrolling interest
Deferred rent:
Gain on change in fair value of derivative instrums
Stock compensation exper
Other
Changes in operating assets and liabilii
Accounts receivabl
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and other as
Accounts payable and accrued liabilit
Cash provided by operating activities of continuamggrations
Cash provided by (used in) operating activitiesistontinued operations
Net cash provided by operating activit

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of marketable securit

Additions to property and equipme

Acquisition of businesses, net of cash acqu

Payments from notes receival

Cash used in investing activities of continuing ragiens

Cash provided by investing activities of discon&dwperations
Net cash used in investing activiti

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from lor-term debt

Payments related to put optic

Exercise of stock optior

Payments on lor-term debi

Purchase of treasury sto

Distribution to noncontrolling interes

Cash provided by (used in) financing activitiesohtinuing operations

NET INCREASE IN CASF
CASH AT BEGINNING OF PERIOL

CASH AT END OF PERIOL

CASH PAID DURING PERIOD FOR
Interest

Income taxe:

See accompanying notes to consolidated financstents.

FOR THE NINE MONTHS

ENDED JUNE 30

2010

2009

(UNAUDITED)

$ 4,584,060 $ 3,414,799

45,614 262,044
4,629,671 3,676,84
2,715,95 2,556,10.

274,42" -

- 823,00
1,972,39! 585,58
136,80° -
17,08« 17,08:
206,78 220,50
58,22t 77,87¢
(22,432 121,90«
132,11 60,13:

- 13,34
(291,49} (103,58
(109,78) 278,93
(325,53)  (1,104,18)
2,807,80 (1,153,46)
12,202,02 6,070,17:
(18,82 49,77(
12,183,20 6,119,94"
(1,008,95) -
(7,163,02)  (1,318,79)
(3,141,41) (48,35’)
2,211 6,01¢
(11,311,17) _ (1,361,12)
- 1,15¢

(11,311,17) _ (1,359,96)
9,258,19: -
(1,568,65() (762,28

14,00( -
(1,90522)  (2,156,37)
(890,71)  (1,218,03)
(211,00() (225,001()
4,696,60 (4,361,69)
5,568,63 398,28:
12,850,25 5,504,061

$ 18,41888 $ 5,902,34

$
$

2,935,991

990, 76(

$ 2,709,98
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Non-cash transactions:

In June 2010, the Company issued detachable warmantonjunction with debt to acquire 179,512 comnshares of the Company. ~
warrants were valued at $434,571 and this amouwrlassified as a discount on the related debt thighoffset to additional paiii capital an
amortized over the life of the debt.

During the nine months ended June 30, 2010, thep@aynretired certain debt and accrued interesteagging $7,463,074 in exchange
895,255 shares of the Company’s common stock.

During the nine months ended June 30, 2010, thep@agnretired 92,500 shares of treasury stock ashaggregating $890,715.
In June 2009, the Company retired its treasuryksémeounting to $2,511,813 by a charge to additipad-in capital.
In April 2009, the Company acquired 15,218 of hares subject to put options with notes payabkditat $350,000.

In April 2009, the Company transferred $5,175,088hT temporary equity and recorded the fair valughef resulting derivative financ
instrument of $3,751,192. The difference was raectegl as additional paid-in capital.

In March 2009, the Company sold 100% of the comistock of Texas S&I which owned and operated theoEnters nightclub for $40,0(
including a note for $35,000.

See accompanying notes to consolidated financdstents.
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RICK'S CABARET INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2010
(UNAUDITED)

1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying unaudited consolidated finant#éments have been prepared in accordance wittuatiag principles generally accep
in the United States of America for interim finaadinformation and with the instructions to FormQQof Regulation S<. They do not incluc
all information and footnotes required by accoumtprinciples generally accepted in the United StaiE America for complete financ
statements. However, except as disclosed hetare has been no material change in the informaliseiosed in the notes to the consolid
financial statements for the year ended Septembe2@®9 included in the Company's Annual ReporEorm 10K, as filed with the Securiti
and Exchange Commission. The interim unauditednfiial statements should be read in conjunctioh tibse financial statements inclu
in the Form 1. In the opinion of management, all adjustmerdasidered necessary for a fair presentation, ctmgisolely of norms
recurring adjustments, have been made. Operamgts for the three and nine months ended Jun203@ are not necessarily indicative of
results that may be expected for the year endipgeBeber 30, 2010.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

We calculate the fair value of our assets andlites which qualify as financial instruments amdlude this additional information in the nc
to consolidated financial statements when thealue is different than the carrying value of thésancial instruments. The estimated
value of accounts receivable, accounts payableaaoxled liabilities approximate their carrying amtsudue to the relatively short maturity
these instruments. The carrying value of short langd-term debt also approximates fair value since thesguments bear market rates
interest. None of these instruments are held &afitig purposes.

3. RECENT ACCOUNTING STANDARDS AND PRONOUNCEMENTS

On July 1, 2009, the Financial Accounting Stand&dard (“FASB”) issued FASB Statement of Finandéatounting Standards (“SFASNo.
168,FASB Accounting Standards Codification and the &fielny of Generally Accepted Accounting PrincipféSAAP”), which is included i
FASB Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) 1@5enerally Accepted Accounting PrinciplesThis new guidance approved the F/
ASC as the single source of authoritative nongavemmtal GAAP. The FASB ASC is effective for interion annual periods ending af
September 15, 2009. All existing accounting stathsl&ave been superseded and all other accouiténgtlire not included in the FASB A
will be considered noauthoritative. The ASC is a restructuring of GAA€signed to simplify access to all authoritativerfiture by providin
a topically organized structure. The adoption oASB ASC did not impact the Compagy’financial condition or results
operations. Technical references to GAAP incluthethese notes to the Consolidated Financial Statésnare provided under the new F/
ASC structure.

In December 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157 (83Q), Fair Value MeasurementsASC 820 clarifies the definition of fair vali
describes methods used to appropriately measuredaie, and




Table of Contents

RICK'S CABARET INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2010

3. RECENT ACCOUNTING STANDARDS AND PRONOUNCEMENTS - continued

expands fair value disclosure requirements, bus e change existing guidance as to whether oamatstrument is carried at fair value.
financial assets and liabilities, ASC 820 is effetfor fiscal years beginning after November 1602, which required the Company to ac
these provisions in fiscal 2009. For nonfinancedets and liabilities, ASC 820 is effective foccéisyears beginning after November 15, 2
which required the Company to adopt these provssioriscal 2010.

ASC 820 establishes a three-tier fair value hiéngravhich prioritizes the inputs used in the vaiormtmethodologies in measuring fair value:

« Level 1 — Observable inputs that reflect quotedexi(unadjusted) for identical assets or liabgifreactive markets.
« Level 2 — Include other inputs that are directlyratirectly observable in the marketplace.
« Level 3 — Unobservable inputs which are supportelittle or no market activity.

The fair value hierarchy also requires an entityn@ximize the use of observable inputs and minintiee use of unobservable inputs w
measuring fair value.

The Companys derivative liabilities have been measured prialtyputilizing Level 2 inputs and the marketablesdéties have been measu
using Level 1 inputs.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 1b8e Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Fioal Liabilities Including a
Amendment of FASB Statement No. (ASC 825). The fair value option permits entitieschoose to measure eligible financial instrume
fair value at specified election dates. The entily report unrealized gains and losses on the stem which it has elected the fair value og
in earnings. The adoption of ASC 825 did not haweagerial impact on the Company'’s financial positiw results of operations.

In December 2007, the FASB issued Statement NdR 1Basiness Combinatio{dSC 805), and Statement No. 1&8n-controlling Interest
in Consolidated Financial Statementsan amendment of ARB No. 51, (ASC 810). ASC 80b&difies the accounting and disclos
requirements for business combinations and broatienscope of the previous standard to apply terafisactions in which one entity obte
control over another business. ASC 810 establisiegs accounting and reporting standards for comtrolling interests in subsidiaries. ~
Company was required to apply the provisions ofrtee standards in the first quarter of fiscal 2(H&xly adoption was not permitted for th
new standards. The adoption of these standardsodlidave a material impact on the accompanyingalmaed financial statements.

In March 2008, the FASB issued SFAS No. 1Bisclosures about Derivative Instruments and Hedgiwtivities, an Amendment of FA.
Statement No. 13@ASC 815). ASC 815 amends SFAS No. 133 and reqein¢ities to enhance their disclosures about (&) aod why a
entity uses derivative instruments, (b) how densainstruments and related hedged items are ateddor under SFAS No. 133 and its rel:
interpretations, and (c) how derivative instrumeand related hedged items affect an ergififiancial position, financial performance, andh
flows. Adoption of this standard did not have aenial impact on the Company’s consolidated finahstatements.
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RICK'S CABARET INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2010

4. STOCK OPTIONS AND STOCK-BASED EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION
Employee and Director Stock Option Plans

In August 1999, the Company adopted the 1999 S@uton Plan (“the Plan”).The options granted under the Plan may be eithamitive
stock options or noqualified options. The Plan is administered by Beard of Directors or by a compensation commitie¢he Board ¢
Directors. The Board of Directors has the exclagiower to select individuals to receive grantgdtablish the terms of the options grante
each participant, provided that all options grargbdll be granted at an exercise price equal feast 85% of the fair market value of
common stock covered by the option on the grarg dad to make all determinations necessary or alisunder the Plan. The options
subject to termination of employment and generalpire five years from the date of grant. Emplogeéons generally vest in installme
over two years. As of June 30, 2010, 378,000 shafreommon stock were available for future gramtder the Plan.

The compensation cost recognized for the nine nsoaided June 30, 2010 and 2009 was $132,111 ant3®60@espectively. There were 5,
and no stock options exercised for the nine moatited June 30, 2010 and 2009, respectively. There mo stock options granted for the |
month periods ended June 30, 2010 and 2009.

Stock Option Activity

Below is the summary of common stock options ouatditeg as of June 30, 2010:

Options Options Options Available for
Employee and Director Stock Option Pl Authorized Outstanding Vested Grant
1999 Stock Option Pla 1,500,001 115,00( 55,00( 378,00(

The following is a summary of all stock option tsaations for the nine months ended June 30, 2010:

Weighted
Average
Weighted Remaining Aggregate
Average Contractual Intrinsic
Shares Exercise Pric  Term (years Value
Outstanding as of September 30, 2! 120,000 $ 7.5%
Granted - -
Cancelled or expire - -
Exercised (5,000 (2.80)
Outstanding as of June 30, 2010 115,000 $ 7.74 111 % 99,15(
Options exercisable as of June 30, 2010 55,000 $ 6.64 112 % 99,15(
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RICK'S CABARET INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2010
5. GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLES

Following are the changes in the carrying amouhtmodwill and licenses for the nine months endeteJ30, 2010 and 2009:

2010 2009
Licenses Goodwill Licenses Goodwill
Beginning balanc $ 41,259,79. $ 37,071,12 $ 39,298,34 $ 37,159,35
Other - 39,81 - -
Intangibles acquired 1,999,90: 613,05¢ - 48,35!
Ending balance $ 43,259,69 $ 37,72399 $ 39,298,34 $ 37,207,70

6. LONG-TERM DEBT

During November 2008, $600,000 of related partytdehtured and was paid in cash by the Company. Adrapany also made additio
payments of $1,556,374 on other long-term debtnduttie nine months ended June 30, 2009.

On August 6, 2009, the Company completed the Jad& @ggregate of $7,200,000 in 10% Convertibleddglres (the “2009 Debenturest)
certain accredited investors (the “HoldersQn April 16, 2010, the Company sent a Notice of é&weption to all of the Holders, there
exercising its right to redeem all of the 2009 Dehees, including the entire outstanding princigalount of all the 2009 Debentures and
accrued but unpaid interest thereon. Upon readiptich Notice of Redemption, all of the Holdergrmeised their right to convert the princi
amount plus all accrued but unpaid interest therdfdhe 2009 Debentures at the conversion pricg80f5 per share in lieu of receiving a ¢
payment (pursuant to the terms of the 2009 Debes}ueffective as of May 3, 2010. Accordingly, ay 4, 2010, the Company issuec
aggregate of 842,972 shares of its common stothetse Holders, in conversion of an aggregate &fG87000 of outstanding principal and
aggregate of $176,000 of outstanding interest ah 2009 Debentures. As a result of this converdtom Company made no cash paymer
the Holders in connection with the Notice of Redéomp Concurrent with the retirement of the débg Company was required to write off
interest expense, the unamortized portion of ieted loan origination costs, amounting to $274,425

On June 25, 2010, the Company completed the sa@ aiggregate of approximately $9.2 million in 1@¥nvertible Debentures (th01(
Debentures”) to certain accredited investors (tHellers”). The 2010 Debentures bear interest at the rate %f @€ annum and mature
June 25, 2013. The 2010 Debentures are payaltbeoné initial payment of interest only due Decembg@r2010, and, thereafter in ten e«
quarterly principal payments, plus accrued intetiesteon. At the option of the Holders, the priatiamount of the 2010 Debentures anc
accrued but unpaid interest thereon may be corvarte shares of the Compasytommon stock at $10.25 per share. The 2010 Detesnar
redeemable by the Company at any time if the ctppiice of its common stock for 20 consecutiveitrgdiays is at least $13.47 per share.

In connection with the sale of the 2010 Debentineline 2010, the Company also issued an aggrefa#9,512 warrants (the “Warrantgt)
the Holders, on a prmta basis. The Company issued each Holder a nuaib®arrants equal to 20% of the number of shafesommol
stock into which each Holder's 2010 Debenture isvestible. The Warrants have an exercise pricgl6f25 and expire on




Table of Contents

RICK'S CABARET INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2010

6. LONG-TERM DEBT - continued

June 25, 2013. The Warrants provide that the Comnpas the right to require exercise of the Wagdfthe closing price of the Compary’
common stock for 20 consecutive trading days Ieast $14.35.

The fair value of the warrants were estimated t&4®4,571 in accordance with FASB ASC 8E@jr Value Measurements and Disclosures
using a Black-Scholes option-pricing model using fitllowing weighted average assumptions:

Volatility 68%
Expected life 1.5 year
Expected dividend yiel -
Risk free rate 1.18%

The cost of the warrants has been recognized esautht on the related debt and will be amortizeer ahe life of the debt.

The proceeds from the sale of the 2010 DebenturédMarrants in June 2010 are intended to be ulilteemake future acquisitions, and r
be utilized for working capital and general corgienaurposes.

An adviser to the Company received compensatiothénamount of $460,000, which was capitalized as lorigination cost and will |
amortized over the life of the debt, in connectiwith advising the Company regarding the June 2(dleé sf the 2010 Debentures
Warrants. The 2010 Debentures and Warrants wédeusder the exemption from registration providgd3ection 4(2) of the Securities Acl
1933 and the rules and regulations promulgatecetimeter, including Regulation D. All of the offemsad sales of the 2010 Debentures
Warrants were made exclusively to “accredited itors$ (as such term is defined in Rule 501(a) of Regutafi) in offers and sales r
involving a public offering. The Holders purchaghd securities for their own account and not witiiew towards or for resale. There wa:
general solicitation or advertising conducted inroection with the sales of the securities.

7. COMMON STOCK
See Note 6 above regarding the Company’s redempfitire 2009 Debentures in May 2010.

During the nine months ended June 30, 2010, thep@agnpurchased 92,500 shares of Company commok &ip@t an aggregate cost
$890,715 in connection with the Company’s paymesitsted to its put options. These shares wergetkti

During the nine months ended June 30, 2009, thep@ognpurchased 269,549 shares of Company commok fetoits treasury at an aggrec
cost of $1,218,033. These and all other treashares were cancelled during the three months edded 30, 2009 in the amount
$2,511,813.

8. EARNINGS PER SHARE (“EPS")
The Company computes earnings per share in acaedaith FASB ASC 260Earnings Per Share ASC 260 provides for the calculatior
basic and diluted earnings per share. Basic eggnier share includes no dilution and is computedibiding income available to comm

stockholders by the weighted average number of comehares outstanding for the period. Diluted iegsiper share reflect the poter
dilution of securities that could share in the @zga of the Company.
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RICK'S CABARET INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2010

8. EARNINGS PER SHARE (“EPS”) - continued

Potential common stock shares consist of shareésthy arise from outstanding dilutive common stegkrants and options (the nhumbe
which is computed using the “treasury stock methaatl from outstanding convertible debentures (thrabr of which is computed using
“if converted method”).

Diluted EPS considers the potential dilution thatld occur if the Compang’outstanding common stock options, warrants amyentible
debentures were converted into common stock tleat $hared in the Compasyearnings (as adjusted for interest expensewibiald no longe
occur if the debentures were converted). Net agmapplicable to common stock and the weightasterage number of shares used for |
and diluted earnings per share computations arensuized in the table that follows:

FOR THE QUARTER ENDEI FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDEI
JUNE 30, JUNE 30,
2010 2009 2010 2009

Basic earnings per shal
Income from continuing operations attributable fokf® shareholder $ 872,527 $ 181546 $ 4,629,670 $ 3,676,84!

Loss from discontinued operations, net of inconxesa (15,826 (30,969 (45,619 (262,049
Net income attributable to Rick's shareholc $ 856,70: $ 1,784,49. $ 4,584,060 $ 3,414,79i
Average number of common shares outstan 9,905,13 9,185,75! 9,545,541 9,288,53!
Basic earnings per share - income from continujperations $ 0.0¢ $ 0.2C $ 04¢ $ 0.4C
Basic earnings per share - discontinued operations $ (0.00) $ (0.00) $ (0.000 $ (0.09)
Basic earnings per share - net income attribut@bRick's shareholder $ 0.0¢ $ 0.1¢ $ 04t $ 0.37

Diluted earnings per shat
Income from continuing operations attributable tok® shareholder $ 872527 $ 1,81546. $ 4,629,670 $ 3,676,84!

Adjustment to net earnings from assumed conversiatebentures (1) - 117,00( -
Adjusted income from continuing operatic 872,52° 1,815,46: 4,746,67: 3,676,84!
Discontinued operations (15,82¢) (30,969 (45,619 (262,049
Adjusted net income attributable to Rick's sharéé $ 856,70: $ 1,784,49: $ 4,701,060 $ 3,414,791
Average number of common shares outstanc
Common shares outstandi 9,905,13. 9,185,75! 9,545,05. 9,288,53!
Potential dilutive shares resulting from exercitgarrants and optiol

2 52,70« 223,80« 45,61« 210,47¢
Potential dilutive shares resulting from conversibidebentures (: - - 284,36( -
Total average number of common shares outstandied for dilution 9,957,83! 9,409,56. 9,875,52! 9,499,01!
Diluted earnings per share - income from continwpgrations

attributable to Rick's shareholders $ 0.0¢ $ 0.1¢ $ 04¢ $ 0.3¢
Diluted earnings per sha- discontinued operatior $ (0.00) $ (0.00 $ (0.000 $ (0.09)
Diluted earnings per share - net income attribetabIRick's

shareholders $ 0.0¢ $ 0.1¢ $ 04¢ $ 0.3¢€

(1) Represents interest expense on dilutive caierdebentures, that would not occur if they wassumed converted.

(2) All outstanding warrants and options were @dered for the EPS computation.

(3) Convertible debentures (principal and accruetkrest) outstanding at June 30, 2010 and 2009ingt$9,454,783 and $691,1
respectively, were convertible into common stock gtice from$ 10.25 to $12.00 per share in 2010 and $12.00 per
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RICK'S CABARET INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2010

8. EARNINGS PER SHARE (“EPS”) — continued

share in 2009, and resulted in additional diluteenmon shares (based on average balances outgfpimdi?010. Potential dilutive shares
69,552 and 36,629 for the three months and ninetmscended June 30, 2010, respectively, have beduaded from earnings per share du
being antidilutive. Potential dilutive shares of 57,597 toe three months and nine months ended June 3@, 2 been excluded fr
earnings per share due to being anti-dilutive.

* EPS may not foot due to rounding.

9. ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSITIONS

Joy of Austin

On December 18, 2009, our wholly owned subsidiR@] Entertainment (3105 [-35), Inc. (“RCI"gntered into and closed a Stock Purc
Agreement (the “RCI Purchase Agreement”) with Sloin Karamalegos (“Karamalegos”), the Joy Club ostky Inc. (“*JOY”) and North IH-
35 Investments, Inc. (“NIlI")whereby RCI acquired 51% of the outstanding stdck@Y and 49% of the outstanding stock of NIII. Yd® the
owner and operator of the adult nightclub busidessvn as “Joy of Austinivhich leases and occupies the real property andowepment
located at 3105 South IH-35, Round Rock, Texas Z8@be “Property”).NIIl is the owner of the Property and leases thepPBrty tc
JOY. Contemporaneously with entry into the RCldPasse Agreement, RCI and Karamalegos entered mtAsaignment and Assumpti
Agreement (the “Assignment Agreementihereby Karamalegos assigned to RCI his right gume the remaining 49% of the outstanc
stock of JOY and the remaining 51% of the outstagditock of NIlI, which right Karamalegos obtaingdrsuant to a Purchase Agreen
entered into between Karamalegos, Evangelos Poggc(aPolycrates”), JOY and NIl (the “PolycratesrBhase Agreement”)Pursuant to tr
RCI Purchase Agreement and the Assignment Agreen®it acquired and owns 100% of the outstandingkstdf JOY and 100% of tl
outstanding stock of NIII.

Pursuant to the terms of the RCI Purchase Agreewrmathithe Assignment Agreement, RCI paid aggregasideration of $4,550,000, p
assumption of a promissory note with First StatelB&aylor (the “Purchase Pricefor the acquisition of JOY and NIll. The Purchd&mce
was payable as follows:

0] $1,820,000 by wire transfer to Karamalec
(i) $880,000 by wire transfer to Polycrat

(iii) $530,000 evidenced by a five (5) year secured msony note to Karamalegos, bearing interest atrdke of 4.75% pu
annum and payable in sixty (60) equal monthly ilstents of principal and interest of $9,941 (theaflimalegos Note”)The
Karamalegos Note is secured by a third lien in fasfoKaramalegos against the Property and improvesecated there«
and a second lien on all of the shares of JOY altid

(iv) $1,320,000 evidenced by a five (5) year securethfmsory note to Polycrates, bearing interest atdke of 4.75% per annt
and payable in sixty (60) equal monthly instalinsenf principal and interest of $24,759 (the “Poétes Note”).The
Polycrates Note is individuallguaranteed by Karamalegos for the first thirty (B@nths and is secured by a second li¢
favor of Polycrates against the Property and impnoents located thereon and a first lien on alhefghares of JOY and NI
and
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RICK'S CABARET INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2010

9. ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSITIONS - continued

(V) The assumption of a Promissory Note dated Septede?004, in the original principal amount of $88ID, executed |
NIl and payable to First State Be-Taylor, which Promissory Note had a current balaot&652,489 as of the date
acquisition, and is secured by the Property andorgments located thereon. The note bears intatebie rate of 7.25¢
payable in monthly installments of principal anteiest of $7,761. The interest rate is subjeetdjostment on September
2014 to the rate of prime plus 2.5%. The noteuis a@nd payable on or before September 10, -

Also pursuant to the agreements described aboveankaegos entered into a four (4) year N@wmpetition Agreement with RCI, a
Polycrates entered into a three (3) year Non-CoitretAgreement with RCI.

The following information summarizes the allocatwfrfair values assigned to the assets and liggslet the acquisition date.

Net current asse $ 43,71t
Property and equipment and other as 2,955,00!
Non-compete agreeme 200,00(
Goodwill 701,32:
SOB license: 2,003,77
Deferred tax liability 701,32)
Net assets acquire $ 5,202,48!

The Company incurred approximately $43,000 in legsdts associated with the acquisition, which aduded in legal and professio
expense in the accompanying consolidated stateofiégmtome.

Goodwill in the acquisition represents the offgetite deferred tax liability recorded as a resfithe difference in the basis of the net asse!
tax and financial purposes. The goodwill is nadwigible for income tax purposes. The resultspdrations of this entity are included in
Company’s consolidated results of operations sideeember 18, 2009. This acquisition was made tindéurthe Companyg’ growth objectiv
of acquiring nightclubs that will quickly contribeito the Companyg’earnings per share. Proforma results of operatiave not been provid
as the amounts were not deemed material to theoidated financial statements.

Fort Worth Gentlemés Club

On June 1, 2010, our wholly owned subsidiary RCileEainment (3315 North Freeway FW), Inc. (the ‘thaser”)completed the acquisiti
of certain assets (the “Purchased Assets”) of Remtd Associates, Inc., a Texas corporation (thellé8) pursuant to an Asset Purch
Agreement (the “Purchase Agreement”) between Pserh&eller, Voldar, LLC, a Texas limited liabiligpmpany (“Voldar”),Sherri Mofic
(“Mofid”), John Faltynski (“Faltynski”) and JamesoXjian (“Noryian”). The Purchase Agreement was executed and closediran 1
2010. Seller owned and operated an adult ententaih cabaret known as “Fort Worth Gentleman’s Clftbe “Club”), located at 3315 Nor
Freeway, Fort Worth, Texas 76106 (the “Real Propert

At closing, Purchaser paid Seller $2,155,520 caswite-transfer for the Purchased Assets. Purchaseealsoed into two lease agreemen
lease agreement for the Real Property with Voltlae (Voldar Lease”and a lease agreement for unimproved property edfao the Re
Property (the “Adjacent Property”) with Mofid (tiiMofid Lease”). Each lease agreement has a term of five yearsonighfive year option -
extend at the discretion of Purchaser. Each lagsgement also grants Purchaser an option
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RICK'S CABARET INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2010

9. ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSITIONS - continued

to purchase the respective properties from Voldar Mofid. Purchaser may exercise the options telmse any time after the twelfth ma
but before the expiration of the lease agreemémttugling their optional extensions). The optionpurchase the Real Property and the o
to purchase the Adjacent Property must be exer@satemporaneously.The purchase price upon exercise of the optiorutohase the Re
Property will range from $4,500,000 to $5,175,0@0iny the fiveyear term. The purchase price upon exercise obgi®n to purchase t
Adjacent Property will range from $500,000 to $®0® during the five-year term.

Also pursuant to the agreements described abovéiddod Voldar entered into a five-year Non-Comieti Agreement with RCI.

The following information summarizes the allocatmfrfair values assigned to the assets and lisdsldt the acquisition date.

Net current asse $ 41,83
Property and equipment and other as 1,300,62!
Non-compete agreeme 200,00(
Goodwill 613,05¢
Net assets acquire $ 2,155,52

The Company incurred approximately $23,000 in legsdts associated with the acquisition, which aduded in legal and professio
expense in the accompanying consolidated stateofiémtome.

The results of operations of this entity are inelddn the Companyg’ consolidated results of operations since Ju2€10. This acquisition w
made to further the Company’s growth objective ofjudring nightclubs that will quickly contribute tthe Company earnings pi
share. Proforma results of operations have nat peavided, as the amounts were not deemed matertlaé consolidated financial statements.

10. INCOME TAXES
Income tax expense on continuing operations forpigods presented differs from the “expectéetieral income tax expense computel

applying the U.S. federal statutory rate of 34%aonings before income taxes, for the three and mianths ended June 30, as a result ¢
following:

For the Three Month For the Nine Month:
Ended June 3( Ended June 3(
2010 2009 2010 2009
Computed expected tax expel $ 541,94: $ 990,66 $ 2,526,44 $ 2,043,21.
State income taxe 12,48¢ 47,78( 89,13( 114,96:
Gain/loss on change in fair value of derivativarmsients and other
permanent differences 107,21( (13,68 (21,310 (46,069
Total income tax expen: $ 661,64. $ 1,024,75 $ 259426 $ 2,112,10
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RICK'S CABARET INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2010

10. INCOME TAXES - continued

Included in the Compang’deferred tax liabilities at June 30, 2010 is apjnately $14,800,000 representing the tax effééhadefinite livec
intangible assets from club acquisitions which rmoe deductible for tax purposes. These deferrediahilities will remain in the Company’
balance sheet until the related clubs are sold.

11. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

The accompanying consolidated financial statemezftsct the following as discontinued operationsodsnd for the periods ended June
2010 and 2009:

The Company sold one of its nightclubs, Encourite3an Antonio, on March 1, 2009 for $40,000, iéhg $5,000 in cash and a $35,000
payable monthly for one year. The Company recaghian impairment of $221,563 for this club durihg fuarter ended December
2008. The actual loss at date of sale was $226,175

The Company closed its Divas Latinas club in Hoogtoring September 2009. This club is also reczaghin discontinued operations.

In certain previous filings, the Company had reépga its Ricks Cabaret in Austin, Texas as a discontinued oiperaflhat club was held f
sale during a portion of 2009, but the Companydkstito renovate and reopen the club and relauneithita new concept in April 2010. Af
the club was not immediately successful, the Compdosed the club again in July 2010. The Compiangurrently negotiating a ventt
under an entirely new concept. The Company armtiegpthat the new venture will be reopened in $eipée 2010. Accordingly, the Aus
club is recognized in continuing operations in @eeompanying consolidated financial statements.

Following is summarized information regarding thdseontinued operations:

Three Months Ende Nine Months Ende
June 30 June 30
2010 2009 2010 2009
Loss from discontinued operatio $ (24,34) $ (47,645 $ (70,17 $ (176,97
Loss on sale of discontinued operatis - - - (226,174
Income tax - discontinued operations 8,521 16,67¢ 24,56: 141,10:
Total loss from discontinued operations, net of $ (15,82¢ $ (30,969 $ (45,619 $ (262,049

Major classes of assets and liabilities includedss®ets and liabilities of discontinued operatiassf:

June 30 September 3(

2010 2009
Current assel $ 56,39: $ 59,52:
Property and equipme 115,72: 146,85¢
Other asset 2,44¢ 3,64¢
Current liabilities (10,409 (19,099
Long-term liabilities (32,707) (32,70)
Net assets (liabilities $ 131,44t $ 158,23¢
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RICK'S CABARET INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2010

12. SEGMENT INFORMATION

Below is the financial information related to ther@pany’s segments:

Business segment sali
Night clubs
Media
Internet websites

Business segment operating incot
Night clubs
Media
Internet website
General corporat

Business segment capital expenditu
Night clubs
Other
General corporate

Business segment depreciation and amortiza
Night clubs
Media
Internet website
General corporat

16

Three Months Ende

Nine Months Ende:

June 30 June 30

2010 2009 2010 2009
$ 19,579,93 $ 20,636,37 61,167,69 $ 55,364,80
203,23! 238,06 770,71¢ 707,03(
143,64 151,98 432,80 493,38
$ 19,926,81 $ 21,026,43 62,371,22 $ 56,565,22
$ 428562 $ 4,626,02 13,664,16 $ 11,302,32
(102,12 (100,82) (257,871) (373,42¢)
17,74. 46,83¢ 60,41¢ 140,02¢
(922,44() (725,847) (2,679,11) (2,483,52)
$ 327880 $ 3,846,19 10,787,59 $ 8,585,40.
$ 5,64500 $ 408,63 10,760,69 $ 1,290,711
-- 1,44¢ 133,16 5,04¢
934,36 22,55: 1,092,35! 36,16¢
$ 6,579,360 $ 432,63t 11,986,21 $ 1,331,93
$ 754,93¢ $ 658,45( 2,061,360 $ 1,971,94
5,00( 5,00( 15,00( 15,00(
1,027 3,41¢ 7,097 10,42:
230,57! 186,27+ 632,49t 558,73
$ 991,54 $ 853,14( 2,71595 $ 2,556,10
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RICK'S CABARET INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2010

13. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Beginning January 1, 2008, the Companyexas clubs became subject to a new state laviriregjeach club to collect and pay a $5 surck
for every club visitor. A lawsuit was filed by tiexas Entertainment Association (“TEAn organization to which we are a member, alle
the fee amounts to be an unconstitutional tax.Manch 28, 2008, a State District Court Judge invisr&ounty, Texas ruled that the new ¢
law violates the First Amendment to the United &atonstitution and is therefore invalid. The gidgrder enjoined the State from collec
or assessing the tax. The State appealed the’€auling. In Texas, when cities or the State giotice of appeal, it supersedes and susy
the judgment, including the injunction. Therefdiee judgment of the District Court cannot be eoéal until the appeals are completed. G
the suspension of the judgment, the State has dptedllect the tax pending the outcome of its @bp®©n June 5, 2009, the Court of App
for the Third District (Austin) affirmed the Distti Court’s judgment that the Sexually Oriented Bass (“S.O.B.")Fee violated the Fir
Amendment to the U.S. Constitution. The Attorneyn&al of Texas has asked the Texas Supreme Couveview the case. On August
2009, the Texas Supreme Court ordered both sidestimit briefs on the merits, while not yet decigimhether to grant the StasePetition fo
review. The State’s brief was filed on SeptemberZl)9 and the Texas Entertainment Associasidmief was filed on October 15, 2009.
February 12, 2010, the Supreme Court of Texas gdargview of the Petition by the Attorney Generffalexas. Oral argument of the ma
was heard on March 25, 2010.

The Company has paid the tax for the first fiveendlr quarters under protest and expensed the the iaccompanying consolidated finar
statements, except for two locations in Dallas whbe taxes have not been paid, but the Compaageisiing and expensing the liability.
the subsequent quarters, as a result of the Thitdt@ decision, the Company accrued the fee, but dighap the State. As of June 30, 2(
the Company has approximately $3,242,000 in acchiabdities for this tax. The Company has paidrenthan $2 million to the State of Te
since the inception of the tax. The Companyexas clubs have filed a separate lawsuit agtiesbtate to demand repayment of the taxe
the State’s appeal ultimately fails, the Compargurrent amount paid under protest would be repaapplied to future admission tax and o
Texas state tax liabilities.

For all the above legal matters, no contingentrkesefor liabilities have been recorded in the agganying consolidated balance sheets as
potential losses are not deemed probable or edtmab
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14. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On July 16, 2010, the Company’s wholly owned subsjdRCI Entertainment (Fort Worth), Inc. (“RCI Ediorth or Purchaser'§omplete:
the acquisition of certain assets (the “Purchasesess”)of Golden Productions JGC Fort Worth, LLC, a Tekiasted liability compan’
(“Golden Productions”) and VCG Holding Corp., a @aldo corporation (“WCGH”) pursuant to an Assetdhaise Agreement (thé>tirchas
Agreement”)between Purchaser, Golden Productions and VCGH:. Pilichase Agreement was executed and closed ya@u2010. Golde
Productions owned and operated an adult entertaingebaret known as “Jaguar’s Gold Club Fort Wortthe “Club”), located at 1232
Calloway Cemetery Road, Fort Worth, Texas, 76048 {Premises”).VCGH owned the improvements on the Premises, immetuthe building
and fixtures (the “Improvements”).

At closing, RCI Fort Worth paid aggregate consitierato Golden Production and/or VCGH for the Parsdd Assets of (1) $1,000,000 cas
wire-transfer and (2) 467,497 shares of common stodkGiH, which were held by the Company. RCI Fort Walso entered into a grot
lease agreement for the land where the Premidesased with Bryan S. Foster, the current ownethefland (the “Lease Agreement”Jhe
Lease Agreement has a term of five years with fiptions to extend the lease for five years, atdiseretion of RCI Fort Worth. The init
monthly rental rate during its term is $20,000 pemth. The Lease Agreement also grants RCI FonttWar its assigns an option to purct
the land from Mr. Foster, which option may be eisd any time after the 12th anniversary date eflthase Agreement and before
expiration of the Lease Agreement (including it@pterm) at a purchase price of fair market valug in no event less than $3,000,000.

Also at closing, RCI Fort Worth entered a Non-Cotitjma Agreement with Mr. Foster. The term of then-Competition Agreement ends
September 17, 2012.
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Item 2. Management'’s Discussion and Analysis of Famcial Condition and Results of Operations.

The following discussion should be read in conjiorctvith our audited consolidated financial statatseand related notes thereto included in
this quarterly report.

FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENT AND INFORMATION

The Company is including the following cautionatatement in this Form 1Q-to make applicable and take advantage of the fzafieo
provision of the Private Securities Litigation Refo Act of 1995 for any forwardtboking statements made by, or on behalf of,
Company. Forwardboking statements include statements concerniagsplobjectives, goals, strategies, future eventgedformance ar
underlying assumptions and other statements, waiehother than statements of historical facts.talerstatements in this Form 1D-are
forward-looking statements. Words such as "expetelieves,” "anticipates,"thay," and "estimates" and similar expressions rtended t
identify forwardiooking statements. Such statements are subjedske and uncertainties that could cause actuailteeto differ materiall
from those projected. Such risks and uncertairgiesset forth below. The Company's expectatibebefs and projections are expresse
good faith and are believed by the Company to feveasonable basis, including without limitatioramagement's examination of histor
operating trends, data contained in the Compamgsrds and other data available from third partieg, there can be no assurance
management's expectation, beliefs or projectiotisr@sult, be achieved, or be accomplished. Initamdto other factors and matters discu:
elsewhere herein, the following are important festiat, in the view of the Company, could caus¢enel adverse effects on the Compa
financial condition and results of operations: tis&s and uncertainties relating to our Internetgragions, the impact and implementation o
sexually oriented business ordinances in the jigtigths where our facilities operate, competitiaetbrs, the timing of the openings of o
clubs, the availability of acceptable financingfitmd corporate expansion efforts, and the deperelendckey personnel. The Company ha
obligation to update or revise these forward-loglkétatements to reflect the occurrence of futuengs/or circumstances.

GENERAL
We operate in three businesses in the adult eirteréent industry:

1. We own and/or operate upscale adult nightclubsisgrgrimarily businessmen and professionals. Oghttiubs offer live adu
entertainment and restaurant and bar operatiohsou§h our subsidiaries, we currently own and/oerafe a total of 21 ad
nightclubs that offer live adult entertainment aledtaurant and bar operations. Seven of our ahpesate under the name "Ric
Cabaret"; four operate under the name “Club Onyyiscale venues that welcome all customers but especially to urbe
professionals, businessmen and professional ashlete clubs operate under the name "XTC Cabami® club that operates
“Tootsie’s”, one club that operates as “CabarettNand one club, acquired in July 2010, that opezats “JaguarsOur nightclub
are in Houston, Austin, San Antonio, Dallas andtMorth, Texas; Charlotte, North Carolina; MinneigoMinnesota; New Yorl
New York; Miami Gardens, Florida; Philadelphia, Reylvania and Las Vegas, Nevada. In addition éoabove clubs, we reopel
in April 2010, under a new concept, the former Rsc€abaret in Austin, Texas, which had been closeddveral months. When-
club was not immediately successful, we closeddhé again in July 2010. We are currently negitgatan agreement under
entirely new concept. We anticipate that the newture will be reopened in September 2010. Noaesantact is permitted at any
our locations

2. We have Internet activitie

a) We currently own two adult Internet membership Wailes at www.CoupleTouch.com and www.xxxpassword.ctVe
acquire xxxpassword.com site content from wholese
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b) We operate an online auction site www.NaughtyBmis.cThis site provides our customers with the oppoty to purchas
adult products and services in an auction formag. &srn revenues by charging fees for each trangsactinducted on tl
automated site

3. In April 2008, we acquired a media division, indhgl the leading trade magazine serving the rbillion dollar adult nightcluk
industry. As part of the transaction we also aajpuiwo industry trade shows, two other industrgéraublications and more than
industry websites

Our nightclub revenues are derived from the saldicqufor, beer, wine, food, merchandise, cover cbargnembership fees, indepen:
contractors' fees, commissions from vending and Afisichines, valet parking and other products andicges. Our Internet revenues
derived from subscriptions to adult content Intérwebsites, traffic/referral revenues, and comroissiearned on the sale of products
services through Internet auction sites, and o#letivities. Media revenues include sale of adviagiscontent and revenues from an an
Expo convention. Our fiscal year end is Septen3Ber

For several years, we have greatly reduced oureushgromotional pricing for membership fees for adult entertainment web sites. 1
reduced our revenues from these websites.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The preparation of financial statements in conftymith accounting principles generally acceptedhia United States of America requ
management to make estimates and assumptions ffeat eertain reported amounts in the financiaktesteents and accompanying na
Estimates and assumptions are based on historiparience, forecasted future events and variousraBsumptions that we believe tc
reasonable under the circumstances. Estimatessaungtions may vary under different assumptionsooditions. We evaluate our estimi
and assumptions on an ongoing basis. We believeatheunting policies below are critical in the payal of our consolidated financ
condition and results of operations.

On July 1, 2009, the FASB issued Statement of FiahrAccounting Standards No. 16BASB Accounting Standards Codification and
Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Prinepl, which is included in FASB ASC 105Generally Accepted Accounti
Principles. This new guidance approved the FASB ASC as iihgles source of authoritative nongovernmental GAAe FASB ASC i
effective for interim or annual periods ending aff&ptember 15, 2009. All existing accounting dgads have been superseded and all
accounting literature not included in the FASB A®l be considered noauthoritative. The ASC is a restructuring of GAABsigned t
simplify access to all authoritative literature pyoviding a topically organized structure. The ptiin of FASB ASC did not impact c
financial condition or results of operations. Teicial references to GAAP included in these notethéoconsolidated financial statements
provided under the new FASB ASC structure.

Accounts and Notes Receivable

Trade accounts receivable for the nightclub openais primarily comprised of credit card chargehjch are generally converted to cash in
to five days after a purchase is made. The magiaigh’'s accounts receivable is primarily comprised otnegbles for advertising sales
Expo registration. Our accounts receivable, otb@omprised of employee advances and other migeslles receivables. The lobgAm portior
of notes receivable are included in other assetthénaccompanying consolidated balance sheetsredfmgnize interest income on nc
receivable based on the terms of the agreemenbasell upon managemengvaluation that the notes receivable and inténesime will bt
collected. We recognize allowances for doubtf@oamts or notes when, based on management judgoientnstances indicate that acco
or notes receivable will not be collected.
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Marketable Securities

Marketable securities at June 30, 2010 consistoofincon stock. ASC 320nvestments in Debt and Equity Securitiesequires certa
investments be recorded at fair value or amortzest. The appropriate classification of the invesita in marketable equity is determine
the time of purchase and re-evaluated at each ¢mlsimeet date. As of June 30, 2010, the Compangrketable securities were classifie
available-forsale, which are carried at fair value, with unraadi gains and losses reported as other comprekeimgiome within th
stockholdersequity section of the accompanying consolidatedtizd sheets. The cost of marketable equity sexsistld is determined ol
specific identification basis. The fair value of niketable equity securities is based on quoted markees. There have been no realized gai
losses related to marketable securities for thmgerended June 30, 2010 or 2009. Marketable giesuineld at June 30, 2010 have a cost
of approximately $1,009,000.

Inventories

Inventories include alcoholic beverages, food, &mnpany merchandise. Inventories are carried alawer of cost, average cost, wh
approximates actual cost determined on a firsfiist-out (“FIFO”) basis, or market.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost. Prowsior depreciation and amortization are made ustrgjghtline rates over the estima
useful lives of the related assets and the shofteiseful lives or terms of the applicable leasmsléasehold improvements. Buildings h
estimated useful lives ranging from 31 to 40 yektsniture, equipment and leasehold improvementg lestimated useful lives between
and ten years. Expenditures for major renewalsbatittrments that extend the useful lives are dagggth Expenditures for normal maintena
and repairs are expensed as incurred. The costsetsasold or abandoned and the related accumuamméciation are eliminated from
accounts and any gains or losses are chargedditeztén the accompanying consolidated statemeirtanime of the respective period.

Goodwill and Intangible Assets

FASB ASC 350,Goodwill and Other Intangibles Assetddresses the accounting for goodwill and othemigible assets. Under FASB A
350, goodwill and intangible assets with indefirlitees are no longer amortized, but reviewed oraanual basis for impairment. All of ¢
goodwill and intangible assets relate to the nilgitcegment, except for $567,000 related to theiamsehment. Definite lived intangible as:
are amortized on a straight-line basis over thsfineted lives. Fully amortized assets are writifragainst accumulated amortization.
annual evaluation was performed as of Septembe2@I, based on a projected discounted cash flothodeusing a discount rate determi
by management to be commensurate with the riskémtén the current business model. We determihatithere is no goodwill impairment
September 30, 2009, except for the impairment tikéime second quarter of fiscal 2009 relating® discontinued operation in Austin.

Impairment of LoneLived Assets

We review property and equipment and intangibleetgssvith definite lives for impairment whenever eigeor changes in circumstan
indicate the carrying amount of an asset may notelseverable. Recoverability of these assets issored by comparison of its carry
amounts to future undiscounted cash flows the assetexpected to generate. If property and equiparal intangible assets with definite li
are considered to be impaired, the impairment todoegnized equals the amount by which the carrymge of the asset exceeds its
value. Assets are grouped at the lowest levelwhich there are identifiable cash flows, principgalit the club level, when asses:
impairment. Cash flows for our club assets aretifled at the individual club level.

Certain of our recent acquisitions, specificallys\segas, Philadelphia and the Media Group, have baderperforming, principally due to-
recent general economic downturn, especially in\@egas, but also due to certain specific operatimsaes, such as the change of conce
Philadelphia and the cab fare marketing issuesaim Yegas. Our assumptions for the projected dasts ffor these units include a grac
recovery for the economy and gradual improvemetthéncab fare issue in Las Vegas. With these gsons, the cash flows from these u
are adequate to show no need for impairment atithes. We will continue to monitor these unitstiive future in case our assumptions dc
prove to be appropriate.
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While there has been some improvement in operatadnthe Las Vegas club and in our media segmensethunits and Club Onyx
Philadelphia are still not profitable. If thesesogtions do not improve in the next quarter, theessets may need to be impaired as of Septe
30, 2010.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

We calculate the fair value of our assets andlit&s which qualify as financial instruments amttludes this additional information in
notes to consolidated financial statements wherfainevalue is different than the carrying valuetbése financial instruments. The estim
fair value of accounts receivable, accounts payabteaccrued liabilities approximate their carryamgounts due to the relatively short matt
of these instruments. The carrying value of shod Bngterm debt also approximates fair value since tliesteuments bear market rate:
interest. None of these instruments are held &afitig purposes.

Derivative Financial Instruments

We account for financial instruments that are iretkto and potentially settled in its own stock/Juding stock put options, in accordance \
the provisions of FASB ASC 81Rerivatives and Hedging Under certain circumstances that would requiréousettle these equity items
cash, and without regard to probability, FASB ASI5 8vould require the classification of all or pafthe item as a liability and the adjustrr
of that reclassified amount to fair value at eaghorting date, with such adjustments reflectedun ansolidated statements of income.
first instrument to meet the requirements of FASBCA815 for derivative accounting occurred in thartgr ended June 30, 2009 wher
renegotiated the payback terms of certain put aptand agreed to pledge as collateral to certdifel®a second lien on certain property.

Revenue Recognition

We recognize revenue from the sale of alcoholicebayes, food and merchandise, other revenues avideseat the point-o$ale upon recei
of cash, check, or credit card charge.

We recognize internet revenue from monthly subsorig to its online entertainment sites when neaifion of a new or existing subscript
and its related fee are received from the thirdyphosting company or from the credit card compamyally two to three days after
transaction has occurred. The monthly fee is niotndable. We recognize Internet auction revenuermgsyment is received from the crt
card as revenues are not deemed estimable nocttmtieleemed probable prior to that point.

Revenues from the sale of magazines and advertisingent are recognized when the issue is publisimedshipped. Revenues and exte
expenses related to our annual Expo conventioneamgnized upon the completion of the conventioAugust.

Sales and Liguor Taxes

We recognize sales and liquor taxes paid as regeaneé an equal expense in accordance with FASB &{_Revenue RecognitionTota
sales and liquor taxes aggregated $4,108,000 add 4800 for the nine months ended June 30, 20d2@89, respectively.

Advertising and Marketing

Advertising and marketing expenses are primarilynpgnsed of costs related to public advertisemeni$ giveaways, which are used
promotional purposes. This category also incliddes paid for transportation in certain cities,exsally Las Vegas. Advertising and marke
expenses are expensed as incurred and are indludedrating expenses in the accompanying congetidstatements of income.
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Income Taxes

Deferred income taxes are determined using thditiamethod in accordance with FASB ASC 74@come Taxes. Deferred tax assets
liabilities are recognized for the future tax capsences attributable to differences between trenfial statement carrying amounts of exis
assets and liabilities and their respective taxebaBeferred tax assets and liabilities are medsusig enacted tax rates expected to apj
taxable income in the years in which those tempodifferences are expected to be recovered orseflihe effect on deferred tax assets
liabilities of a change in tax rates is recogniz@dhcome in the period that includes the enactnuatié. In addition, a valuation allowanc
established to reduce any deferred tax asset fahwhis determined that it is more likely thantribat some portion of the deferred tax &
will not be realized.

FASB ASC 740 creates a single model to addressuatiog for uncertainty in tax positions by presorda minimum recognition thresholi
tax position is required to meet before being re@ay in the financial statements. FASB ASC 74® @sovides guidance on derecognit
measurement, classification, interest and penaltiesounting in interim periods, disclosure anddiion. There are no unrecognized
benefits to disclose in the notes to the consadéinancial statements.

Put Options

In certain situations, we issue restricted comntwaress as partial consideration for acquisitionsesfain businesses or assets. Pursuant
terms and conditions of the governing acquisitigneaments, the holder of such shares has the hghtnot the obligation, to put a fix
number of the shares on a monthly basis back &t asfixed price per share. We may elect durimg given month to either buy the mont
shares or, if management elects not to do so,dldehcan sell the monthly shares in the open madae any deficiency between the ami
which the holder receives from the sale of the mignghares and the value of shares will be paidsyWe have accounted for these shat
accordance with the guidance established by FASE A80 as a reclassification of the value of thereshdrom permanent to tempor
equity. As the shares become due, we transfevdahe of the shares back to permanent equity,dagsamount paid to the holder. Also
“Derivative Financial Instruments” above.

Earnings Per Common Shaf€&€PS)

We compute earnings per share in accordance wittBFASC 260Earnings Per Share FASB ASC 260 provides for the calculation of o
and diluted earnings per share. Basic earningsspare includes no dilution and is computed by digdincome available to comm
stockholders by the weighted average number of comahares outstanding for the period. Diluted es®iper share reflect the poter
dilution of securities that could share in our éags.

Potential common stock shares consist of sharésnthg arise from outstanding dilutive common stogitions and warrants (the numbe
which is computed using the “treasury stock methaaiitl from outstanding convertible debentures (thrabrr of which is computed using
“if converted method”)Diluted EPS considers the potential dilution thatld occur if our outstanding common stock optiomasrants an

convertible debentures were converted into comnbackghat then shared in our earnings (as adjUsteidterest expense, that would no lor
occur if the debentures were converted).

Stock Options

We utilize the fair value recognition provisionsFASB ASC 718Compensation—Stock Compensatimaccount for stock options issued.
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The stock option compensation costs recognizedhfrquarters ended June 30, 2010 and 2009 wer@3éand $20,044, respectively, .
were $132,111 and $60,132, respectively, for the months then ended. There were 5,000 and nk spiions exercised for the nine mor
ended June 30, 2010 and 2009, respectively. Tere no stock options grants for the quarters eddeée 30, 2010 and 20089.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2010 AS COMPARED TO THE THREE MONTHSE
ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

For the three months ended June 30, 2010, we hasbldated total revenues of $19,926,812 compawedonhsolidated total revenues
$21,026,432 for the three months ended June 309,28Qlecrease of $1,099,620 or 5.2%. The decrigatatal revenues was primar
attributable to a 13.5% decrease in same stors falehe quarter, principally due to a $2.5 millidecrease in revenues at our Las Vegas
for the quarter, a 58% decrease, offset by new atgjuisitions in Fort Worth and Austin, Texas.

Income taxes, as a percentage of income befors tagee 41.5% and 35.2% for the quarters ended 3an2010 and 2009, respectively.
increase in 2010 is due to the significant losslmenge in fair value of derivative instruments vbhig not deductible for tax purposes.

The decrease in net income was primarily due taltw@ease in revenues explained above. Incomeebigftome taxes (exclusive of corpo
overhead) for same-location-samperiod of club continuing operations decreased4t@%6,209 for the three months ended June 30, 201
$4,827,865 for same period ended June 30, 2008, 8r9%.

Following is a comparison of the Compasiyhcome statement for the quarters ended Jun203@ and 2009 with percentages compari

total revenue:

2010 % 2009 %

Sales of alcoholic beverag $ 8,067,62 40.52% $ 8,083,03: 38.4%
Sales of food and merchand 1,701,00: 8.5% 1,655,341 7.%%
Service revenue 9,003,009 45.2% 10,175,44 48.2%
Internet revenue 143,64 0.7% 151,98¢ 0.7%
Media 203,23! 1.C% 238,06 1.1%
Other 808,21¢ 4.1% 722,54¢ 3.4%

Total revenue 19,926,81 100.(% 21,026,43 100.(%
Cost of goods sol 2,457,14! 12.2% 2,290,45! 10.€%
Salaries & wage 4,488,55: 22.5% 4,093,31 19.5%
Stock compensatic 44,031 0.2% 20,04« 0.1%
Taxes and permil 2,981,47! 15.(% 2,443,99. 11.€%
Credit card fee 368,25: 1.8% 421,71 2.C%
Rent 971,82: 4.%% 922,87¢ 4.4%
Legal & professiona 866,50« 4.2% 565,80: 2. 7%
Advertising and marketin 1,264,92. 6.2% 3,378,41 16.1%
Depreciation and amortizatic 991,54: 5.C% 853,14( 4.1%
Insurance 276,47 1.4% 331,71¢ 1.€%
Utilities 396,77¢ 2.C% 379,03: 1.8%
Other 1,540,501 7.7% 1,479,72 7.C%
Total operating expens 16,648,01 83.5% 17,180,23 81.7%

Income from continuing operatiol 3,278,80: 16.5% 3,846,19 18.2%
Interest incomt 5,12z 0.C% 1,11¢ 0.C%
Interest expens (996,20 -5.C% (811,68¢) -3.2%
Interest expens— amortization of loan origination cos (286,719 -1.4% - 0.C%
Loss on change in fair value of derivative instruse (407,049 -2.C% (121,909 -0.6%
Income from continuing operations before incomegax $ 1,593,94i 8.C% $ 2,913,72 13.%%
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Following is an explanation of significant variasda the above amounts.

Other revenues include ATM commissions earned,ovigiames and other vending and certain promotios ¢earged to our entertainers.
Company recognizes revenue from other revenuesemites at the point-of-sale upon receipt of cakh¢k, or credit card charge.

Cost of goods sold includes cost of alcoholic and-@coholic beverages, food, cigars and cigaretteschandise, media printing/bindil
media postage and internet traffic purchases arfinaster payouts. The cost of goods sold for thb operations for the three months er
June 30, 2010 was 12.3% compared to 10.9% forhitee= tmonths ended June 30, 2009. This was dueetddcrease in 2010 from 200!
service revenues, which has no related cost. ©eeaf goods sold from our internet operationstlfier three months ended June 30, 201C
1.8% compared to 0.3% for the three months endee 30, 2009. The cost of goods sold from our meg&rations for the three months er
June 30, 2010 was 20.9%, compared to 32.0% foptbeious year quarter. The cost of goods soldséane-location-samgeriod of clul
continuing operations for the three months endeg B0, 2010 was 11.6%, compared to 10.7% for theegeeriod ended June 30, 2009.

The increase in payroll and related costs, stadetbalaries & Wagesabove, was primarily due to the addition of the rdubs. The increa
in percentage to total revenues is principally doethe increase in the minimum wage. Payroll $ame-location-samgeriod of clul
continuing operations increased to $3,338,514 Herthree months ended June 30, 2010 from $3,28%¢pfhe same period ended June
2009. Management currently believes that its layat management staff levels are appropriate.

Taxes and permits consists principally of payrakes, property taxes, sales and alcohol taxes\sigeand permits and the patron tax ir
nightclubs in Texas. The increase in percentagettd revenues in 2010 is principally due to tve hew clubs in Texas which are subjec
the patron tax.

Rent expense increased principally due to the Helvio Fort Worth acquired on September 30, 2009.

The increase in legal and professional expensgrisipally due to the labor lawsuit in New York.

The decrease in the percentage of advertising amiating to total revenue in 2010 is principallyedo the improvement in the marketing ¢
in Las Vegas.

The increase in depreciation and amortization &stdithe new clubs acquired during the year.

The increase in interest expense was attributabbeit obtaining new debt during August 2009 toriceathe purchase of new clubs and re
real estate. That debt was retired in May 2010 wadaised new debt capital in June 2010. Conntmdth the retirement of the debt,
Company was required to write off, as interest espethe unamortized portion of its related lodgioation costs, amounting to $274,425.
of June 30, 2010, the balance of long-term debt$48s217,629 compared to $31,768,115 a year earlier

Loss on change in fair value of derivative instratserepresents the calculated loss on the deravatiincipally caused by the decrease ir
common stock price during the 2010 quarter.

The Company has taken the following steps to renh@sies in certain clubs:
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Rick's Cabaret Las Vegas lost approximately $200,000rbeihcome taxes for the quarter ended June 300,2€dmpared to a loss
approximately $300,000 in the 2009 quarter eveh wie significant decrease in sales, due to a dserin marketing costs. We have wol
diligently to reduce marketing costs in Las Vegasulting in improved performance.

The Rick’s Cabaret in Philadelphia was losing money sincegtion. We have converted the location to Cluly>ORhiladelphia in Janua
2009 and the club began to be profitable untildbenomic recession in Philadelphia began to redexenues. We have changed manage
recently in this club and have begun to show be#teenues. We have also negotiated a $14,000 decieaent, beginning April 1.

The accompanying consolidated financial statemesftect the following as discontinued operationsoésnd for the period ended June
2010:

The Company sold one of its nightclubs, Encountean Antonio, on March 1, 2009 for $40,000, indihg $5,000 in cash and a $35,000
payable monthly for one year. The Company recaghian impairment of $221,563 for this club durihg fuarter ended December
2008. The actual loss at date of sale was $226,175

We closed our Divas Latinas club in Houston du@ggptember 2009. This club is also recognizeddoatitinued operations.

In previous filings, we recognized our RiskCabaret in Austin, Texas as a discontinued operafhat club was held for sale during a pot
of 2009, but we decided to renovate and reopercline and we relaunched it with a new concept inilAp810. When the club was 1
immediately successful, we closed the club agaidulg 2010. We are currently negotiating an agesgnander an entirely new concept.

anticipate that the new venture will be reopene8eptember 2010. Accordingly, the Austin clubdsagnized in continuing operations in
accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Following is summarized information regarding thdseontinued operations:

Three Months Ende Nine Months Ende
June 30 June 30
2010 2009 2010 2009
Loss from discontinued operatio $ (24,34) $ (47,645 $ (70,179 $ (176,97)
Loss on sale of discontinued operati - - - (226,179
Income tax discontinued operatior 8,521 16,67¢ 24,56: 141,10:
Total loss from discontinued operations, net of tax $ (15,82¢) $ (30,969 $ (45,619 $ (262,049

Major classes of assets and liabilities includedss®ets and liabilities of discontinued operatiassf:

June 30 September 3f

2010 2009
Current asset $ 56,39: $ 59,524
Property and equipme 115,72: 146,85¢
Other asset 2,44¢ 3,64¢
Current liabilities (10,409 (19,097
Long-term liabilities (32,70 (32,709
Net assets (liabilities $ 131,44t $ 158,23
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2010 AS COMPARED TO THE NINE MONTHSE

ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

For the nine months ended June 30, 2010, we hasotidated total revenues of $62,371,223 comparedotesolidated total revenues
$56,565,222 for the nine months ended June 30, ,2809ncrease of $5,806,001 or 10.3%. The incrémdetal revenues was primai

attributable to an increase in same store salesmw club acquisitions in Fort Worth and Austiexds. Total revenues for same-location-

sameperiod of club continuing operations increasedppraximately $56,632,517 for the nine months endiete 30, 2010 from approximat

$54,402,343 for same period ended June 30, 200994 increase.

Income taxes, as a percentage of income before tagre 34.9% and 35.1% for the nine months endee 30, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

The increase in net income was primarily due toitlceesase in revenues explained above and a decireasarketing costs in Las Vegas an
Dallas/Fort Worth. Income before income taxes l{gsige of corporate overhead) for same-locationesperiod of club continuing operatic
increased to $14,448,751 for the nine months edded 30, 2010 from $12,276,160 for same periodeddee 30, 2009, or by 17.7%.

Following is a comparison of the Compasyicome statement for the nine months ended Jan203.0 and 2009 with percentages compar

total revenue:

Sales of alcoholic beverag
Sales of food and merchand
Service revenue

Internet revenue

Media

Other

Total revenue:

Cost of goods sol

Salaries & wage

Stock compensatic

Taxes and permil

Credit card fee

Rent

Legal & professiona
Advertising and marketin
Depreciation and amortizatic
Insurance

Utilities

Impairment of nightclub asse
Costs related to VCG Holdings acquisiti
Other

Total operating expenses
Income from continuing operatiol

Interest income and oth

Interest expens

Interest expens— amortization of loan origination cos
Gain (loss) on change in fair value of derivatinstiuments

Income from continuing operations before incomess

2010 % 2009 %
$ 25,146,01 40.% $ 21,682,58 38.5%
5,073,34 8.1%  4,641,34 8.2%
28,520,65 45.%  27,110,70. 47.S%
432,80 0.7% 493,38« 0.9%
770,71 1.4% 707,03( 1.2%
2,427,68. 3.9%  1,930,18 3.4%
62,371,22 100.(% ~ 56,565,22 100.(%
7,553,161 12.1%  6,732,03 11.9%
13,210,28 21.2%  12,309,77 21.6%
132,11 0.2% 60,13: 0.1%
9,151,41! 14.9% 7,158,710 12.7%
1,084,12. 1.7%  1,208,11! 2.1%
3,022,93: 4.8%  2,792,06. 4.9%
1,971,39" 3.2%  1,880,36. 3.3%
5,710,02: 9.2%  6,246,95 11.0%
2,715,95! 4.0%  2,556,10. 4.5%
797,60 1.3% 838,08: 1.5%
1,213,52! 1.9%  1,182,34; 2.1%
- 0.C% 823,00 1.5%

304,17¢ 0.5% - 0.C%
4,716,91. 7.6% 419205 7.4%
51,583,62 82.6%  47,979,81 84.%
10,787,59 17.%%  8,585,40: 15.2%
11,70¢ 0.C% (58) 0.0C%
(3,042,74) 4.5%  (2,453,98) -4.%%
(348,25) -0.6% - 0.0%
22,43 0.0% (121,909 -0.2%

$ 7,430,72! 11.5% $  6,009,45. 10.€%
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Following is an explanation of significant variasda the above amounts.
Other revenues include ATM commissions earned,ovglemes and other vending and certain promotiandharged to our entertainers.

Cost of goods sold includes cost of alcoholic and-@coholic beverages, food, cigars and cigaretteschandise, media printing/bindil
media postage and internet traffic purchases arlimaster payouts. The cost of goods sold for the cbntinuing operations for the n
months ended June 30, 2010 was 12.0% comparedZ&oifdr the nine months ended June 30, 2009. ©keaf goods sold from our inter
operations for the nine months ended June 30, 2@K02.3% compared to 1.2% for the nine months edded 30, 2009. The cost of go
sold from our media operations for the nine momthded June 30, 2010 was 26.3% compared to 36.2%d@009 period. The cost of go
sold for same-location-sanperiod of continuing club operations for the ninenths ended June 30, 2010 was 11.4%, compared T801fbi
the same period ended June 30, 2009.

The increase in payroll and related costs, stade®alaries & Wagesabove, was primarily due to the addition of the retubs. The decres

in percentage to total revenues is principally tiuthe large increase in sales which was accongdlistith similar staffing. Payroll for same-
location-sameperiod of club operations increased to $9,940,107%He nine months ended June 30, 2010 from $BVEXor the same peri
ended June 30, 2009Management currently believes that its labor andagament staff levels are appropriate.

Taxes and permits consists principally of payrakes, property taxes, sales and alcohol taxesis@seand permits and the patron tax ir
nightclubs in Texas. The increase in percentagettd revenues in 2010 is principally due to tve hew clubs in Texas which are subjec
the patron tax.

Rent expense increased principally due to the relwvio Fort Worth.

The decrease in advertising and marketing is praibi due to Las Vegas and its marketing campaiffiset by significant marketing costs
Dallas/Fort Worth for several clubs, including tiew club, Cabaret North.

Maintenance capital expenditures amounted to appairly $1,750,000 for the nine months ended Jube2®10. We anticipate tt
depreciation will exceed maintenance capital exjiares for the year ending September 30, 2010 lpyaagmately $1.5 million.

We incurred certain oniééme costs related to negotiating the unsuccessfglisition of VCG Holdings. These costs amoumte$i304,178 fc
the nine months ended June 30, 2010. Without tbests, our fully diluted earnings per share wddge increased by $0.03.

The increase in interest expense was attributabbeit obtaining new debt during August 2009 toriceathe purchase of new clubs and re
real estate. That debt was retired in May 2010 wadaised new debt capital in June 2010. Conntréth the retirement of the debt,
Company was required to write off, as interest espethe unamortized portion of its related lodgioation costs, amounting to $274,425.
of June 30, 2010, the balance of long-term debt$&s217,629 compared to $31,768,115 a year earlie

Gain (loss) on change in fair value of derivatimstiuments represents the calculated gain (lossh®mlerivative principally caused by
increase or decrease in our common stock pricegitinie periods.

The Company has taken the following steps to renh@sies in certain clubs:
The Rick’s Cabaret in Austin lost $1.4 million before incotages during the nine months ended June 30, 2088t club was held for s:
during a portion of 2009, but we decided to reneatd reopen the club and we relaunched it witbva concept in April 2010. When the ¢

was not immediately successful, we closed the elgain in July 2010. We are currently negotiatimgjagreement under an entirely 1
concept. We anticipate that the new venture velldopened in September 2010.
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The Rick's Cabaret in Philadelphia was losing money sinception. We have converted the location to Cluly>ORhiladelphia in Janus
2009 and the club began to be profitable untildbenomic recession in Philadelphia began to redexenues. We have changed manage
recently in this club and have begun to show betteenues. We have also negotiated a $14,000atkexe rent, beginning April 1.

Club Onyx Dallas did not have a liquor license dgrthe quarter ended December 2008 until Decemp20@8 and lost $127,000 bef
income taxes for the nine months ended June 3®.20Ais location was substantially profitable floe nine months ended June 30, 2010.

Rick’s Cabaret Las Vegas lost approximately $1.6 milli@iore income taxes for the nine months ended Bne2009. The club Ic
approximately $543,000 for the nine months endete J80, 2010. We have made expense reductions addications to our marketir
campaign in this location and continue to see im@neent in operations. We will continue to moniapense levels and the marketing costs.
LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Working Capital and Cash Flows

At June 30, 2010, we had working capital of apprately $10,221,000 compared to approximately $4@IBat September 30, 2009. °
increase is principally due to the new debt issnehine 2010, which is principally long-term debfane 30, 2010.

Net cash provided by operating activities in theeninonths ended June 30, 2010 was $12,183,201 ceth{ta$6,119,942 for the nine mor
ended June 30, 2009. The increase in cash probiglegerating activities was primarily due to trenpayment of patron taxes during the |
months ended June 30, 2010 and the payment of mtaxes and accounts payable during the nine memitsd June 30, 2009.

We used $11,311,172 of cash in investing activiliesng the nine months ended June 30, 2010 cordpargl,359,969 during the nine mor
ended June 30, 2009. The increase was princigallyto the acquisition of a new clubs in Decemt&#92and June 2010 along with relz
real estate. Cash of $4,696,607 was providedranfiing activities during the nine months endede B0 2010 compared to $4,361,692
used during the nine months ended June 30, 2088. pfincipal difference in the two periods was tireceeds from longerm debt c
approximately $9.3 million.

We require capital principally for construction acquisition of new clubs, renovation of older clisl investments in technology. We 1
also utilize capital to repurchase our common stxkart of our share repurchase program.

Put Options

As part of certain of our acquisition transactions, have entered into Lock-Up/Le&kit Agreements with the sellers pursuant to whachol
after a contractual period after the closing dtte,seller shall have the right, but not the oltlaya to have us purchase from seller a ce
number of our shares of common stock issued idréresactions in an amount and at a rate of not h@e a contractual number of the sh
per month (the “Monthly Shares”) calculated at meper share equal to a contractual value petestigialue of the Rick’s Shares”At our
election during any given month, we may either they Monthly Shares or, if we elect not to buy therithly Shares from the seller, then
seller shall sell the Monthly Shares in the operrketa Any deficiency between the amount which te#es receives from the sale of
Monthly Shares and the value of the shares shablae by us within three (3) business days of thte @f sale of the Monthly Shares du
that particular month. Our obligation to purchalse Monthly Shares from the Seller shall terminatd aease at such time as the sellel
received a contractual amount from the sale oRiu&’s Shares and any deficiency. Under the teritbeLock-Up/LeakOut Agreements, ti
seller may not sell more than a contractual nunaberur shares per 30-day period, regardless of vendhe seller “Putsthe shares to us
sells them in the open market or otherwise.
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During April and May 2009, we completed renegotiatdf terms of certain of our long term debt ansigmificant portion of outstanding
options. The maximum obligation that could be oweslr stock were valued at zero is $8,892,000uate 30, 2010. We consider this typ
financing transaction to be similar to interesefdebt. If we are required to buy back any of timsgeoptions, the bupack transaction will t
purely a balance sheet transaction, affecting drdynporary Equity and Stockholderg&quity and will have no income statement ef
Following is a schedule of the annual obligatioftefathe renegotiation) we would have if our stqoice remains in the future at the clos
market price on August 2, 2010 of $7.70 per shafreshich there can be no assurance:

For the Year Ending September .

2010 $ 737,70(
2011 3,000,00!
2012 2,059,17
2013 138,32
Total $ 5,935,201

Each $1.00 per share movement of our stock priseahaaggregate effect of $384,000 on the totagabitn.

Other Liquidity and Capital Resources

We have not established lines of credit or finagaither than the above mentioned notes payableoanexisting debt. There can be
assurance that we will be able to obtain additidimaincing on reasonable terms in the future, dlatshould the need arise.

On September 29, 2008, our Board of Directors ai#bd us to repurchase up to $5,000,000 worth efommmon stock. During the ni
months ended June 30, 2010, no shares were pudchader this program. During the nine months enlled 30, 2009, we purchased 162
shares of common stock in the open market at prargging from $2.64 to $5.95 per share.

We believe that the adult entertainment industgngard of treating entertainers as independentraxtots provides us with safe har
protection to preclude payroll tax assessment fmr [years. We have prepared plans that we belgllgrotect our profitability in the eve
that sexually oriented business industry is reguineall states to convert dancers who are nowgaddent contractors into employees.

The sexually oriented business industry is higldynpetitive with respect to price, service and lmrgtas well as the professionalism of
entertainment. Although management believes tieaaine wellpositioned to compete successfully in the futunereé can be no assurance
we will be able to maintain our high level of nareeognition and prestige within the marketplace.

IMPACT OF INFLATION

We have not experienced a material overall impawmnfinflation in our operations during the pastesal years. To the extent permittec

competition, we have managed to recover increassts ahrough price increases and may continue tsadoHowever, there can be
assurance that we will be able to do so in theréutu
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SEASONALITY

Our nightclub operations are affected by seasaabfs. Historically, we have experienced redusaenues from April through Septem
with the strongest operating results occurringriyi®ctober through March. Our experience to dadécates that there does not appear to
seasonal fluctuation in our Internet activities.

GROWTH STRATEGY

We believe that our nightclub operations can camito grow organically and through careful entripimarkets and demographic segm
with high growth potential. Our growth strategy (&) to open new clubs after careful market redegb) to acquire existing clubs in locati
that are consistent with our growth and incomeeatr@nd which appear receptive to the upscalefolmula we have developed, as is the
with the acquisitions of the clubs in Austin, Dalland Fort Worth, Texas, Miami Gardens, Floridajld@elphia, Pennsylvania, and Las Ve
Nevada, (c) to form joint ventures or partnershipseduce sta-up and operating costs, with us contributing equitghe form of our brar
name and management expertise, (d) to develop héwconcepts that are consistent with our managéesarah marketing skills, (e) to acqt
real estate in connection with club operationd)algh some clubs may be in leased premises, a(filor enter into licensing agreement:
strategic locations.

We continue to evaluate opportunities to acquine ngghtclubs and anticipate acquiring new locatitimet fit our business model as we F
done in the past.

We also expect to continue to grow our Internefipoenters. We plan to focus on highargin Internet activities that leverage our marig
skills while requiring a low level of stattp cost and ongoing operating costs and refinetand our Internet sites for better positionin
organic search rankings amongst the major seabidars. We will restructure affiliate programspgmvide higher incentives to our curr
affiliates to better promote our Internet sitesjlevactively seeking new affiliates to send tratficour Internet sites.

The acquisition of additional clubs and/or interapérations for amounts in excess of our cash batawill require us to obtain additional ¢
or issuance of our common stock, or both. Therebmano assurance that we will be able to obtaifitiadal financing on reasonable term
the future, if at all, should the need arise. Aahility to obtain such additional financing cohlave an adverse effect on our growth strategy.

Item 4T. Controls and Procedures.

Disclosure Controls and ProceduresManagement maintains "disclosure controls and phees," as such term is defined in Rules 13¢
and 15d15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (fExchange Act"), that are designed to ensure ittiatmation required to |
disclosed by us in reports that we file or submmter the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, sumedaand reported within the til
periods specified in Securities and Exchange Cosionisrules and forms, and that such informatioacdesumulated and communicated to
management, including our Chief Executive Officad &hief Financial Officer, as appropriate, to ailimely decisions regarding requil
disclosure. In designing and evaluating our disglesontrols and procedures, management recogttizaedisclosure controls and procedt
no matter how well conceived and operated, canigeognly reasonable, not absolute, assurance Heabltjectives of the disclosure cont
and procedures are met. Additionally, in desigrdigrlosure controls and procedures, our managenmeg@ssarily was required to apply
judgment in evaluating the c-benefit relationship of possible disclosure corstrahd procedures. The design of any disclosureraeranc
procedures also is based in part upon certain gggaums about the likelihood of future events, ahdré can be no assurance that any d
will succeed in achieving its stated goals undiepeatiential future conditions.
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Our management evaluated, with the participationwfprincipal executive and principal financiaficér, the effectiveness of our disclos
controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 18a)}End 15dt5(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934rasnded (the "Exchar
Act"), as of June 30, 2010. Based on this evadmatour principal executive and principal financidficer concluded that our disclos
controls and procedures were effective as of JOn@@&10.

There were no changes in our internal control dvemncial reporting during our quarter ended JuBe2D10, that have materially affectec
are reasonably likely to materially affect, oureimtal control over financial reporting.

PART [—OTHER INFORMATION
Item 1. Legal Proceedings.

Beginning January 1, 2008, the Companyexas clubs became subject to a new state laviriregjeach club to collect and pay a $5 surck
for every club visitor. A lawsuit was filed by tiexas Entertainment Association (“TEAgn organization to which we are a member, alle
the fee amounts to be an unconstitutional tax.Manch 28, 2008, a State District Court Judge invisr&ounty, Texas ruled that the new ¢
law violates the First Amendment to the United &atonstitution and is therefore invalid. The gidgrder enjoined the State from collec
or assessing the tax. The State appealed the’€auling. In Texas, when cities or the State giotice of appeal, it supersedes and susy
the judgment, including the injunction. Therefdiee judgment of the District Court cannot be eoéal until the appeals are completed. G
the suspension of the judgment, the State has dptedllect the tax pending the outcome of its @bp®©n June 5, 2009, the Court of App
for the Third District (Austin) affirmed the Distti Court’s judgment that the Sexually Oriented Bass (“S.O.B.”")Fee violated the Fir
Amendment to the U.S. Constitution. The Attorneyn&al of Texas has asked the Texas Supreme Couweview the case. On August
2009, the Texas Supreme Court ordered both sideshimit briefs on the merits, while not yet decidimhether to grant the StagePetition fo
review. The State’s brief was filed on SeptemberZl9 and the Texas Entertainment Associasidmief was filed on October 15, 2009.
February 12, 2010, the Supreme Court of Texas gdargview of the Petition by the Attorney Generffalexas. Oral argument of the ma
was heard on March 25, 2010.

The Company has paid the tax for the first fiveendlr quarters under protest and expensed the the iaccompanying consolidated finar
statements, except for two locations in Dallas whbe taxes have not been paid, but the Compaagcisiing and expensing the liability.
the subsequent quarters, as a result of the Thitdt@ decision, the Company accrued the fee, but dighap the State. As of June 30, 2(
the Company has approximately $3,242,000 millioadnrued liabilities for this tax. The Company pagd more than $2 million to the St
of Texas since the inception of the tax. The Comfmiiexas clubs have filed a separate lawsuit agtiesBtate to demand repayment of
taxes. If the State’s appeal ultimately fails, @@mpanys current amount paid under protest would be repaabplied to future admission-
and other Texas state tax liabilities.

For all the above legal matters, no contingentrkesefor liabilities have been recorded in the agganying consolidated balance sheets as
potential losses are not deemed probable or edtimab

Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities andse of Proceeds.
During the three months ended June 30, 2010, wehpeed no shares of common stock in the open maltkeing the three months enc

June 30, 2010, we purchased 34,500 shares of comstumk from put option holders at prices rangingnfr $8.17 to $12.05 p
share. Following is a summary of our purchasembwyth:
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Period: (@ (b) (c) (d)
Maximum
Total Number (or

Number of | Approximate
Shares (or | Dollar Value)

Units) of Shares (ot
Purchased a: Units) that
Total Part of May Yet be
Number of Publicly Purchased
Shares (or Average Announced Under the
Units) Price Paid Plans or Plans or
Month Ending Purchased per Share Programs Programs
April 30, 2010 - - -
IMay 31, 2010 18,50( | $ 11.2¢ -
June 30, 201( 16,000 | $ 8.6€ -
Total for the three months ended June 30, 201 34,50(] $ 10.0¢ -1 $ 4,171,42!

Iltem 6. Exhibits.

Exhibit 31.1— Certification of Chief Executive Officer of Rick'Cabaret International, Inc. required by Rule 43a(1) or Rule 15d 44(a) o
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as adoptesiyamt to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley AcDOR2

Exhibit 31.2— Certification of Chief Financial Officer of Rick’Cabaret International, Inc. required by Rule £3a1(1) or Rule 15d 44(a) o
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as adoptesiyamt to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley AcDOR2

Exhibit 32.1-- Certification of Chief Executive Officer of RitkCabaret International, Inc. pursuant to Secfi6f of the Sarbane®xley Acl
of 2002 and Section 1350 of 18 U.S.C. 63.

Exhibit 32.2-- Certification of Chief Financial Officer of Ritk Cabaret International, Inc. pursuant to Seci66 of the Sarbanedxley Act
of 2002 and Section 1350 of 18 U.S.C. 63.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgé Act of 1934, the registrant has duly causisdréport to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned hereunto duly authorized.

RICK'S CABARET INTERNATIONAL, INC.

Date: August 16, 201 By: /s/ Eric S. Langal
Eric S. Langar
Chief Executive Officer and Preside

Date: August 16, 201 By: /s/ Phillip K. Marshall
Phillip K. Marshall
Chief Financial Officer and Principal Accountingfioér
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EXHIBIT 31.1
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE
SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
I, Eric S. Langan, Chief Executive Officer and Raest of Rick’s Cabaret International, Inc., certifiat:
1. | have reviewed this quarterly report on Forn-Q of Rick's Cabaret International, In

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not cortajnuntrue statement of a material fact or omgtede a material fact necessar
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts under which such statements were made, ntgadisg with respect to t
period covered by this repo

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements,aher financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the issuer as of, and far periods presented in this rep:

4. The issu€’s other certifying officer and | are responsible &stablishing and maintaining disclosure contrans! procedures (
defined in Exchange Act Rules -15(e) and 15-15(e)) for the issuer and hay

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procsdunecaused such disclosure controls and procedorée designed under
supervision, to ensure that material informatidiatieg to the issuer, including its consolidatedsidiaries, is made known to us
others within those entities, particularly duritg fperiod in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financ&garting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be designed un
my supervision, to provide reasonable assuranceardag the reliability of financial reporting anthet preparation of financ
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the issuerslaisire controls and procedures and presentedsimeport our conclusions about
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and prores] as of the end of the period covered by #psit based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the essuinternal control over financial reporting tlwtcurred during the issuer's nr
recent fiscal year that has materially affectedjsoreasonably likely to materially affect, theusss internal control over financ
reporting; and

5. The issues other certifying officer and | have disclosedsdxh on our most recent evaluation of internal adrwwver financie
reporting, to the issuer's independent registerddip accounting firm and the audit committee of iksuer's board of directors
persons performing the equivalent functior

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weakgses in the design or operation of internal cbwotrer financial reporting which &
reasonably likely to adversely affect the issualpidity to record, process, summarize and repa#rfcial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedvmanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the issuer's inter
control over financial reporting.

Date: August 16, 201 By: /s/ Eric S. Langal

Eric S. Langar
Chief Executive Officer and Preside




EXHIBIT 31.2
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE
SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
I, Phillip K. Marshall, Chief Financial Officer dRick’s Cabaret International, Inc., certify that:
1. | have reviewed this quarterly report on Forn-Q of Rick's Cabaret International, In

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not cortajnuntrue statement of a material fact or omgtede a material fact necessar
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts under which such statements were made, ntgadisg with respect to t
period covered by this repo

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements,aher financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the issuer as of, and far periods presented in this rep:

4. The issu€’s other certifying officer and | are responsible &stablishing and maintaining disclosure contrans! procedures (
defined in Exchange Act Rules -15(e) and 15-15(e)) for the issuer and hay

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procsdunecaused such disclosure controls and procedorée designed under
supervision, to ensure that material informatidiatieg to the issuer, including its consolidatedsidiaries, is made known to us
others within those entities, particularly duritg fperiod in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financ&garting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be designed un
my supervision, to provide reasonable assuranceardag the reliability of financial reporting anthet preparation of financ
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the issuerslaisire controls and procedures and presentedsimeport our conclusions about
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and prores] as of the end of the period covered by #psit based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the essuinternal control over financial reporting tlwtcurred during the issuer's nr
recent fiscal year that has materially affectedjsoreasonably likely to materially affect, theusss internal control over financ
reporting; and

5. The issues other certifying officer and | have disclosedsdxh on our most recent evaluation of internal adrwwver financie
reporting, to the issuer's independent registerddip accounting firm and the audit committee of iksuer's board of directors
persons performing the equivalent functior

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weakgses in the design or operation of internal cbwotrer financial reporting which &
reasonably likely to adversely affect the issualpidity to record, process, summarize and repa#rfcial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedvmanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the issuer's inter
control over financial reporting.

Date: August 16, 201 By: /s/ Phillip K. Marshall
Phillip K. Marshall
Chief Financial Officer and Principal Accountingfioér




EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO RULE 13a-14(b) OR
RULE 15d-14(b) and 18 U.S.C. §1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the quarterly report of Rick’altaret International, Inc. (the "Company") on FAi®Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2010
as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commiseinthe date hereof (the "Report"), |, Eric S. 4aum, Chief Executive Officer and
President of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18.0. §1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 9@&dbarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with thejtérements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the SemgiExchange Act of 1934; and
(2) The information contained in the Repfairly presents, in all material respects, thwafficial condition and results

operations of the Company.

Date: August 16, 201 By: /s/ Eric S. Langal

Eric S. Langar
Chief Executive Officer and Preside




EXHIBIT 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO RULE 13a-14(b) OR
RULE 15d-14(b) and 18 U.S.C. §1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the quarterly report of Rick’altaret International, Inc. (the "Company") on FAi®Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2010
as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commiseinthe date hereof (the "Report"), |, PhillipMarshall, Chief Financial Officer of the
Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §1350,dapted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanesy@deof 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with thejtérements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the SemsiExchange Act of 1934; and
(2) The information contained in the Repfairly presents, in all material respects, thwafficial condition and results

operations of the Company.

Date: August 16, 201 By: /s/ Phillip K. Marshal

Phillip K. Marshall
Chief Financial Officer and Principal AccountingfiCer




